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DECISION

Wendell Kleen, d/b/a Blue Chip Transportation (“Kleen”) violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) on September 27, 2006, by allowing his employee to drive a commercial motor vehicle while transporting property in interstate commerce, when Kleen had not implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program for his commercial motor vehicle drivers.
Kleen violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) on two separate occasions, by failing to maintain copies of the responses by each state agency concerning his employees’ driving records (“the required responses”) in the driver qualification files of two of his employees who drove commercial motor vehicles.  One employee drove on September 27, 2005, and another employee drove on September 28, 2005.  
Kleen violated 49 CFR §391.51(b)(7) on two separate occasions, by failing to maintain a copy of the drivers’ medical examination certificates in his driver qualification files on two of his 
employees who drove commercial motor vehicles.  One employee drove on September 16, 2005, and another employee drove on September 27, 2005.  
Kleen violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) on two separate occasions, by failing to require two of his employees to make and keep the required records of duty status when they drove commercial motor vehicles.  One employee drove on September 22, 2005, and another employee drove on September 27, 2005.  
Each violation of 49 CFR 391.51(b)(2), 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7), and 49 CFR 395.8(a) constitutes a violation of 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and a violation of § 307.400.1.

Procedure

On March 27, 2006, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a complaint against Kleen.  A copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing were served on Kleen on April 4, 2006, by certified mail.  On November 14, 2006, we held a hearing on the complaint.  Senior Administrative Counsel David Woodside represented the MHTC.  Neither Kleen nor anyone representing him appeared.  On December 19, 2006, Kleen filed a letter explaining why he did not attend the hearing.  The matter became ready for our decision on January 29, 2007, the date the transcript was filed.
Findings of Fact

1. Kleen does business as Blue Chip Transportation, a registered fictitious name.  The business is located at East Highway K, Nevada, Missouri.
2. Kleen uses commercial motor vehicles (trucks) to haul property for compensation on the public highways in Missouri in both interstate and intrastate commerce.
3. Kleen employed drivers Garland Johnson, Donald Herbst, Bill Holman, and Shane Cook to drive his trucks.

4. Kleen assigned Johnson to drive a 1993 Kenworth truck with a gross vehicle weight rating of 48,000 pounds, which was leased to Kleen.  Its equipment number was 22 (“Truck 22”).  Kleen leased Truck 22 from the James D. Kleen Trust, by a lease agreement dated October 12, 2004.  The lease provided for an indefinite term until cancellation, and Kleen produced no records showing that the lease was canceled.
5. Kleen assigned Herbst to drive a 1999 Freightliner truck with a gross vehicle weight rating of 52,000 pounds, which was leased to Kleen.  Its equipment number was 27 (“Truck 27”).  Kleen leased Truck 27 from R & O Truck Sales, Inc., by a lease agreement dated June 28 2005.  The lease provided for a 36-month term from June 28, 2005, and Kleen produced no records showing that the lease was terminated.
6. Kleen assigned Holman to drive a 1984 Kenworth truck with a gross vehicle weight rating of 48,000 pounds, which was owned by Kleen.  Its equipment number was 9 (“Truck 9”).  
7. Kleen assigned Cook to drive a 1996 Kenworth truck with a gross vehicle weight rating of 60,000 pounds, which was owned by Kleen.  Its equipment number was 26 (“Truck 26”).
Count I – Alcohol and/or Controlled Substance Testing Program
8. On September 27, 2005, Kleen authorized Johnson to drive, and Johnson drove, Truck 22 to haul corn in interstate commerce for compensation from Metz, Missouri, to Springdale, Arkansas, before Kleen had implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program for his drivers.
Count II – Driving Records
9. On September 27, 2005, Kleen authorized Herbst to drive, and Herbst drove, Truck 27 to haul corn in interstate commerce for compensation from Metz, Missouri, to Springdale, Arkansas.  Kleen failed to maintain the required responses in Herbst’s driving record in the driver qualification file.
10. On September 28, 2005, Kleen authorized Holman to drive, and Holman drove, Truck 9 to haul corn in interstate commerce for compensation from Metz, Missouri, to Springdale, Arkansas.  Kleen failed to maintain the required responses in Holman’s driving record in the driver qualification file.
Count III – Medical Examiner’s Certificates
11. On September 16, 2005, Kleen authorized Herbst to drive, and Herbst drove, Truck 27 to haul potash in interstate commerce for compensation from Muskogee, Oklahoma, to Drexel, Missouri.   Kleen failed to maintain the required driver medical examination certificate for Herbst in the driver qualification file.
12. On September 27, 2005, Kleen authorized Cook to drive, and Cook drove, Truck 26 to haul corn in interstate commerce for compensation from Metz, Missouri, to Springdale, Arkansas.  Kleen failed to maintain the required driver medical examination certificate for Cook in the driver qualification file.
Count IV – Record of Duty Status
13. On September 22, 2005, Kleen authorized Herbst to drive, and Herbst drove, Truck 27 to haul hominy feed in interstate commerce for compensation from Atchison, Kansas, to Bolivar, Missouri.  Kleen did not require Herbst to prepare and keep a record of his duty status for that date.
14. On September 27, 2005, Kleen authorized Johnson to drive, and Johnson drove, Truck 22 to haul corn in interstate commerce for compensation from Metz, Missouri, to Springdale, Arkansas.  Kleen did not require Johnson to prepare and keep a record of his duty status for that date.
Compliance Review
15. On November 14, 2005, Transportation Enforcement Investigators Matt Smith and Henry “Bud” Knight, with the Missouri Department of Transportation “(MoDOT”), completed a compliance review at Kleen’s terminal and principal place of business.  The MoDOT investigators specifically requested that Kleen produce all his documents and records, and they obtained the records from Kleen.
Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Kleen has violated the law.

The MHTC alleges that Kleen authorized his employees to operate commercial motor vehicles with gross vehicle weight ratings or gross combination weight ratings of 26,001 pounds or more, on the public highways to transport property.  We have found those facts.  The MHTC asserts that Kleen is a “motor carrier.”  Section 390.020(18) defines “motor carrier” as:
any person engaged in the transportation of property or passengers, or both, for compensation or hire, over the public roads of this state by motor vehicle.  The term includes both common and contract carriers[.]
Section 390.020(19) defines motor vehicle as:
any vehicle, truck, truck-tractor, trailer, or semitrailer, motor bus or any self-propelled vehicle used upon the highways of the state in the transportation of property or passengers[.]
Regulation 49 CSR § 390.5 defines employee as follows:
Employee means any individual, other than an employer, who is employed by an employer and who in the course of his or her employment directly affects commercial motor vehicle safety.  Such term includes a driver of a commercial motor vehicle . . . .
The MHTC alleges that Kleen authorized his employees to operate commercial motor vehicles in violation of provisions of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations found at 
49 CFR § 382.115(a), § 391.51(b)(2), § 391.51(b)(7) and § 395.8(a).
The MHTC has the authority to enforce those federal regulations through § 390.201, RSMo 2000, and § 622.550, RSMo 2000, both of which provide:
[T]he officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state[.]
Section 390.041(5), RSMo 2000, vested the division of motor carrier and railroad safety with the authority to “enforce . . . the rules and regulations promulgated by the director of the department of public safety under section 307.400, RSMo, as they apply to motor vehicles.”  Pursuant to § 307.400, the Director promulgated Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1), which provides:
Commercial motor vehicles and trailers, in addition to all requirements of state law and consistent with section 307.400, RSMo (1986), shall be operated and equipped in compliance with the requirements for drivers and vehicles established in 49 CFR 390-397 and 49 CFR 100-199.
Therefore, MHTC has jurisdiction to file the complaint to establish Kleen’s alleged violations of the federal regulations.
Count I

The MHTC’s complaint alleges:

11.  On or about September 27, 2005, Respondent violated §49 CFR 382.115(a) in that it authorized Garland Johnson, Respondent’s employee, to operate a commercial motor vehicle with a Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of 48,000 pounds before Respondent had implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program as required by 49 CFR Parts 40 and 382.
Part 382 of Title 49 CFR establishes the employer’s duty to implement an alcohol or controlled substance testing program, while Part 40 sets forth specific procedures and forms to be used in the program.  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle,” “employer,” and “safety sensitive function” as:
Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle— 
(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds)[.]
*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations. Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.
*   *   *

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins work or is required to be in readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing work. Safety-sensitive functions shall include:
*   *   *

(3) All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation[.]
The MHTC’s evidence shows that Kleen comes within the definition of employer, that Truck 22 falls within the definition of commercial motor vehicle, and that Johnson’s operation of the vehicle falls within the definition of safety-sensitive function.
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115 provides:
(a) All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.301 provides:
(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver.
Kleen does not claim the exception under paragraph (b), and we do not find anything in the record indicating that subsection (b) applies.  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.305 provides:
(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section.  Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.
These regulations required Kleen to implement an alcohol or controlled substance testing program before permitting his employees to drive commercial motor vehicles.  Kleen failed to implement such a testing program before he authorized his employee/driver Johnson to operate Truck 22 on September 27, 2005.  Kleen violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) by failing to follow 
49 CFR 382.301.

Count II
The MHTC’s complaint alleges:

13.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §391.51(b)(2) and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to drive a commercial motor vehicle with a GVWR of 52,000 pounds and 48,000 pounds, respectively, while failing to maintain inquiries concerning driver’s driving record in driver’s qualification file:

(a) Donald Herbst – September 27, 2005; and,

(b) Bill Holman – September 28, 2005.
Regulation 49 CFR §391.51(b)(2) provides:
(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:
*   *   *

(2) A copy of the response by each State agency concerning a driver’s driving record pursuant to § 391.23(a)(1)[.]
Section 307.400.1 provides:
It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.
Kleen is a motor carrier, and Truck 27 and Truck 9 are commercial motor vehicles.  Therefore, Kleen was required to comply with 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2).  Kleen authorized Herbst to operate Truck 27 in interstate commerce on September 27, 2005, and Holman to operate Truck 9 in interstate commerce on September 28, 2005, prior to obtaining driving records for these drivers’ qualification files.
Kleen violated 49 CFR §391.51(b)(2) on two separate occasions.  A violation of 49 CFR 391.51(b)(2) constitutes a violation of 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and a violation of § 307.400.1.
Count III

The MHTC’s complaint alleges:

15.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §391.51(b)(7) and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to drive a commercial motor vehicle with a GVWR of 52,000 pounds and 60,000 pounds, respectively, while failing to maintain driver’s medical examiner’s certificate in driver’s qualification file:

(a) Donald Herbst – September 16, 2005; and,

(b) Shane Cook – September 27, 2005.
Regulation 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7) provides:
(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:
*   *   *

(7) The medical examiner’s certificate of his/her physical qualification to drive a commercial motor vehicle as required by Sec. 391.43(f) or a legible photographic copy of the certificate[.]
Kleen is a motor carrier, and Truck 27 and Truck 26 are commercial motor vehicles. Therefore, Kleen was required to comply with 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7).  Kleen authorized Herbst to operate Truck 27 in interstate commerce on September 16, 2005, and Cook to operate Truck 26 in interstate commerce on September 27, 2005, without first having obtained a copy of each of these drivers’ medical examination certificates for his driver qualification files on these drivers.
Kleen violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7) on two separate occasions.  A violation of 49 CFR 391.51(b)(7) constitutes a violation of 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a concurrent violation of § 307.400.1.

Count IV

The MHTC’s complaint alleges:

17.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §395.8(a) and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to operate a 
commercial motor vehicle with a GVWR of 52,000 pounds and 48,000 pounds, respectively, without requiring a record of his duty status:

(a) Donald Herbst – September 22, 2005; and,

(b) Garland Johnson – September 27, 2005.
Regulation 49 CFR § 395.8(a) provides:
(a). . . every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraph (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
Kleen is a motor carrier.  Therefore, he was required to comply with 49 CFR § 395.8(a).  Kleen authorized Herbst to operate Truck 27 in interstate commerce on September 22, 2005, and Johnson to operate Truck 22 in interstate commerce on September 27, 2005, without requiring the drivers to prepare and keep records of duty status.
Kleen violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) on two separate occasions.  A violation of 49 CFR 395.8(a) constitutes a violation of 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and a violation of § 307.400.1.
Summary
Kleen violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) on one occasion by authorizing Johnson to operate Truck 22 on September 27, 2005, without Kleen having implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program for his drivers.

Kleen violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) on two separate occasions by authorizing Herbst to operate Truck 27 on September 27, 2005, and authorizing Holman to operate Truck 9 on September 28, 2005, while failing to maintain responses concerning the drivers’ driving records in the driver qualification file.  
Kleen violated 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7) on two separate occasions by authorizing Herbst to operate Truck 27 on September 16, 2005, and Cook to operate Truck 26 on September 27, 2005, 
while failing to maintain the drivers’ medical examination certificates in his driver qualification file for each driver. 
Kleen violated 49 CFR §395.8(a) on two separate occasions by authorizing Herbst to operate Truck 27 on September 22, 2005, and authorizing Johnson to operate Truck 22 on September 27, 2005, while failing to require the drivers to prepare records of duty status for those days.

Each violation of 49 CFR 391.51(b)(2), 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(7), and 49 CFR 395.8(a) constitutes a violation of 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and a violation of § 307.400.1.

SO ORDERED on March 29, 2007.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP



Commissioner

	�Statutory references are to the 2006 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri unless otherwise noted.


	�All but Cook appear on Kleen’s driver list (Ex. 2), and Cook is listed as a driver in Exhibit 1.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  


	�Section 622.350.
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